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Title 14---Aeronautics and Space A_rHOn_T: [sections 302(f), S0S(d), and by air issued under that Act, as dele-

CHAPI_R I--FEDERAL AVIATION ADMIN- 813(a) of the Federal Aviation Act of 1958 gated to the Administrator, has been re-(49 u.S.C. 1343(f), 1344(d), and 1354(a)): delegated to the Chief Counsel, the ,as,
ISTRATION, DEPARTMENT OF TRANS- and | 1.47 of the regulations of the Office of sistant Chief Counsel for Operations and• he Secretary of Transportation (49 t;#'_PORTATION :_-,_,,.- , , Evaluation, and to each Regional Court-

[Docket No. 15966; Amd_i] 1.47) ]., sel.
PART 1S--ENFORCEMENT PROCEDURES In consideration of the-foregoing. Part (c) The redelegation in paragraph (b)

Redelegationof Hazardous Materials 13 of the Federal Aviation Regulations of this section is in addition to the au-
Enforcement Authoflty is amended, effective August 2, 1976, as thority to take civil penalty action underfollows:

The purpose of this amendment to 1. Paragraph (a) of § 13.1 is amended § 13,15 of this Part with respect to viola-
Part 13 of the Federal Aviation Regula- to read as follows: tions of the Federal Aviation Act of 1958,
tions (14 CFR 13) is to redelegate the and regulations or orders issued under
Administrator's enforcement authority. § 13.1 Reports ofvlolal|ons, that Act, involving transportation or
with respect to the Hazardous Materials (a) Any person who knows of a viola- shipment of hazardous materials, as dele-
Transportation Act, concerning the
transportation and shipment of hazard- tion of the Federal Aviation Act of 1958, gated to the Administrator.
Dug materials by air, as delegated to or of any regulation or order issued un-
him by the Secretary of Transportation. der it, or any violation of the Hazard- § 13.19 [Amended]ous Materials Transportation Act or of _. Section 13.19 is amended by amend-

The Se_'retary of Transportation has ing paragraph (b) by adding the follow-
any regulation or order issued un- ing new sentence after the first sentence

delegated to the Federal Aviation Ad- der it, relating to the transportation or ,,ministrator authority to carry out func- (which ends with the words or air
tions vested in the Secretary by the shipment by air of hazardous materials, agency certificate") and before the sec-may report it to appropriate personnel ofHazardous Materials Transportation - ond sentence (which begins with thean FAA regional or district oeSce.
Act (49 U.S.C. 1801 et seq.) concerning words "this authority is") : "This author-
investigations, records, inspection, pen- * * * * * ity may be exercised for remedial pur-
alties, and specific relief so far as they 2. Paragraph Ca) of § 13.3 is amended poses in cases involving the Hazardous
apply to the transportation or shipment by adding the following language at the Materials Transportation Act (49 U.S.C.
of hazardous materials by air (para -_ end thereof: 1801 et seq.) or regulations issued under
graph 1.47(k) of the Regulations of the 3. tn the first sentence of § 13.3(b), the that Act."

Once of the Secretary of Transportation word "Act" is deleted and the words 7. § 13.23 ,is amended to read as fol-
49 CFR 1.47(k))). In order to further "Federal Aviation Act of 1958" are in- lows:
delegate this authority to the same otiS- serted in place thereof.
clals who currently have responsibility 4. Section 13.3 is amended by adding a § 13.23 Criminal penalties.
under Part 13 with respect to the en- new paragraph (c) reading as follows: (a) Sections 902 and 1203 of the Fed-
forcement provisions of the Federal
Aviation Act of 1958, this amendment § 13.3 Investigations. eral Aviation Act of 1958 (49 U.S.C. 1472and 1523), provide criminal penalties for
redelegates the Administrator's enforce- Ca) "Under § 1.47(k) of the Regula- any person who knowingly and willfully
ment authority with respect to the Haz- tions of the Office of the Secretary of violates specified provisions of that Act
ardous Materials Transportation Act, Transportation (49 CFR 1.47(k)), the or any regulation or order issued under
and regulations issued under that Act, to Administrator may, with respect to the those provisions. Section 110 (b) of the
the Chief Counsel, the Deputy Chief transportation or shipment by air of haz- Hazardous Materials Transportation Act
Counsel, each Assistant Chief Counsel, ardous materials, conduct investigations, (49 U.S.C. 1809(b) ) provides for a crim-
and to each Regional Counsel (as ap- issue subpoenas, conduct hearings, re- inal penalty of a fine of not more than
propriate). This amendment adds new quire the production of relevant docu- $25,000, imprisonment for not more than
§ 13.16, and affects §§ 13.1, 13.3, and 13.23 ments, records, and property, and take five years, or both, for any person who
of Part 13. A conforming clarification is depositions as prescribed in Section 109 willfully violates a provision of that Act
also made to § 13.19. of the Hazardous Materials Transporta- or a regulation or order issued under it.

With respect to civil penalty actions, tion Act (49 U.S.C. 1808)."
new § 13.16 deals solely with the Hazard- (c) For the purpose of investigating (b) H an inspector or other employee
ous Materials Transportation Act and alleged violations of the Hazardous Ma- of the FAA becomes aware of a possible
regulations issued under that Act. It is terials Transportation Act, or of any violation of any criminal provision of the
thus in addition to, and does not affect, regulation or order issued under it, relat- Federal Aviation Act of 1958 (except a
the continuing authority, pursuant to ing to the transportation or shipment by violation of § 902(i) through (m) which
§ 13.15, to take civil penalty actions with air of hazardous materials, the author- is reported directly to the Federal Bureau
respect to violations of the Federal Aria- lty under Section 109 of that Act (49 of Investigation), or of the Hazardous
tion Act of 1958, and regulations or or- U.S.C. 1808), as delegated to the Adminis- Materials Transportation Act, relating to
ders issued under that Act, in cases in- trator, has been redelegated to the Chief the transportation or shipment by air of
volving transportation or shipment of Counsel, the Deputy Chief Counsel, each hazardous materials, he shall report it
hazardous materials, as delegated to the Assistant Chief Counsel, and each Re- to the Office of the Chief Counsel or the
Administrator. This is made clear in gional Counsel. Regional Counsel concerned. If appro-
§ 13.16(c). 5. A new § 13.16 is added to read as priate, that office refers the report to

As this amendment merely redelegates follows: the Department of Justice for criminal
authority within the FAA, and involves prosecution of the offender. If such an
agency organization, procedure or prac- § 13.16 Civil Penalties: Hazardous Ma- inspector or other employee becomes
rice only, notice and public procedure terials Transportation Act. aware of a possible violation of a Federal
thereon are not required. Furthermore, (a) Section 110 of the Hazardous Ma- statute that is within the investigatory
in order to support timely enforcement terials Transportation Act (49 U.S.C. Jurisdiction of another Federal agency,
ofthe Hazardous MaterialsTrausporta- 1809)providesforcivilpenalties,forper- he shallimmediatelyreportItto that
tionAct,and inordertoensureuninter- sonswho knowinglycommit actsthatare agency accordingtostandardFAA prac-
ruptedenforcementwith respecttoreg- violationsof thatAct,or ofany regula- tlces.
ulations issued under that Act, this tion issuedunder it,of not more than IssuedinWashington,D.C.,on July28,
redelegation should be effective as soon $10,000 for each violation. 1976.
as possible. I, therefore, find that good (b) The authority under § llO of the JOHN L. McLvcAs,
cause exists for making this amendment Hazardous Materials Transportation Act A_min_trator.
effective in less than 30 days after publi- to initiate, compromise, and assess civil
cation in the FEDERALREGISTER. penalties, and refer cases to the U.S. At- [Fit Doc.76-22232 Filed 7-30-76; 8:45 am]

torney General for collection of such civ-
il penalties for violations of that Act, or
of regulations dealing with transporta-

"_._ tion or shipment of hazardous materials


